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2021
16,829,053.81 99.81
32,734.32 0.19

16,861,788.13

1,853 100.00

2021
)

FORUM ONE VCG PRT
1 VIETNV-A 726,329 | 11.75| 8,530,781.08 | 23.17 | 16,829,053.81 | 99.81

2021
FPT CORP -SHS- 9.42
HOA PHAT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY 9.23
3. | MILITARY COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK 7.74
4_ | VIETNAM TECHNOLOGICAL & COMM 5.65
5. | MOBILE WORLD INVESTMENT CORP 5.49
6. | NAM LONG INVESTMENT CORP 4.84
7. | HOCHI MINH CITY SECURITIES 4.45
8. | VINHOMES JOINT STOCK CO 4.25
9. | KINHBAC CITY 4.09
10. | GEMADEPT 3.79
11._ | ASIA COMMERCIAL BANK 3.64
12. | QUANG NGAI SUGAR JSC 3.26
13. | DUCGIANG CHEMICALS 3.25
14._ | SAIGON CARGO SERVICE CORPORATION 3.10
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15. VIETNAM PROSPERITY JOINT STOCK COMM 3.06
BANK
JOINT STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK FOR
16. FOREIGN 3.00
REFRIGERATION ELECTRICAL
17 ENGINEERING 2-95
18. | PHUNHUAN JEWELRY JOINT STOCK COMPANY 2.80
19 BINH DUONG WATER ENVIRONMENT JOINT 1.99
" | STOCK .
20. | DAT XANH GRP REGISTERED SHS 1.63
21. | AIRPORTS CORP - REGISTERED 1.50
22. | VINH HOAN 1.44
23. | VIETNAM JS COMMERCIAL BANK 1.05
24 .| CAN DON HYDRO POWER JSC 0.30
25. | VINAMILK 0.00
26. | BINHMINH PLASTICS -SHS- 0.00
27. | VINCOM RETAIL JOINT STOCK COMPANY 0.00

2021

2021

47/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021
2012 17,837 1,960 24.80 2,726
2013 19,903 2,187 30.34 3,334
-y 21,839 2,400 37.26 4,095
2015 19,511 2,144 37.16 4,084
2016 17,367 1,909 36.09 3,966

10 21,602 2,374 50.38 5,537
2017 : ' :

1 20,659 2,270 63.23 6,949
2018 : ' ’

12 15,301 1,682 53.80 5,913
2019 : ' ’

13 10,169 1,118 40.80 4,484

(2020 ) : ’ ’

14 14,874 1,635 68.11 7,485
2021 : ’ ’
2020 12,027 1,322 49.77 5,470

10 12,152 1,336 50.98 5,603
11 12,986 1,427 56.25 6,182
12 13,708 1,507 60.42 6,640
2021 13,310 1,463 59.14 6,499
14,696 1,615 65.65 7,215

14,386 1,581 65.34 7,181

14,874 1,635 68.11 7,485

16,505 1,814 77.21 8,485

17,772 1,953 83.14 9,137

16,650 1,830 79.83 8,773

16,862 1,853 82.15 9,028
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2011 0 74,500 719,200
2012 30 0 74,500 719,200
0 63,300 655,900
2012 , ,
2013 30 0 63,300 655,900
0 69,800 586,100
2013 7 ’
2014 30 0 69,800 586,100
0 61,100 525,000
2014 . ,
2015 30 0 61,100 525,000
0 43,900 481,100
2015 , ,
2016 30 0 43,900 481,100
2826 0 52,350 428,750
2017 30 0 52,350 428,750
11
2017 0 102,050 326,700
2018 30 0 102,050 326,700
12
2018 0 42,277 284,423
2019 30 0 42,277 284,423
2829 0 35,206 249,217
2020 30 0 35,206 249,217
2330 0 30,850 218,367
2021 30 0 30,850 218,367
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11
(0120 81 1007
http://www.ace-sec.co.jp/
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131
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2021 31
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2021 30
2021 2020

15,658,778 1,720,900 10,309,709 1,133,037
2,778 305 62,398 6,858
3,282 361

171,190 18,814
15,832,746 1,740,019 10,375,389 1,140,255
371,430 40,820 8,528 937

159,056 17,480
229,065 25,174 164,771 18,108
759,551 83,475 173,299 19,046
21,836,700 2,399,853 24,921,700 2,738,895
(6,763,505) (743,309)  (14,719,610)  (1,617,685)
15,073,195 1,656,544 10,202,090 1,121,210
15,832,746 1,740,019 10,375,389 1,140,255
218,367 23,999 249,217 27,389

69.03 7,586 40.94 4,499
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2021 30
2021 2020
582 64
582 64
(59,898) (6,583) (60,000) (6,594)
(39,450) (4,336) (53,600) (5,891)
(15,327) (1,684) (16,336) (1,795)
(87,749) (9,644) (96,204) (10,573)
(980) (108)
(19,998) (2,198) (30,081) (3.306)
(149,374) (16,416) (150,000) (16, 485)
(16,929) (1,860) (17,033) (1,872)
(27,766) (3,051) (44,108) (4,847)
(417,471) (45,880) (467,362) (51,363)
(417,471) (45,880) (466,780) (51,299)
341,039 37,480 283,591 31,167
6,690,002 735,231 (3,077,517) (338,219)
242 27 (82) )
7,031,283 772,738 (2,794,008) (307,061)
6,613,812 726,858 (3,260,788) (358, 361)
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2021 30

284,423 28,442,300 3,125,809 (13,148,768) (1,445,050) 15,293,532 1,680,759
(35,206) (3,520,600) (386,914) 1,689,946 185,725 (1,830,654) (201,189)
(3,260,788) (358,361) (3,260,788) (358,361)

249,217 24,921,700 2,738,895 (14,719,610) (1,617,685) 10,202,090 1,121,210
(30,850) (3,085,000) (339,042) 1,342,293 147,518 (1,742,707) (191,523)

6,613,812 726,858 6,613,812 726,858

218,367 21,836,700 2,399,853 (6,763,505) (743,309) 15,073,195 1,656,544
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2021 30
2021 2020
6,613,812 726,858 (3,260,788) (358, 361)
(171,190) (18,814)
3,282 361 ©) ©)
64,294 7,066 (1,299) (143)
1,681,972 184,849 2,257,219 248,068
(341,039) (37,480) (283,591) (31,167)
(6,690,002) (735,231) 3,077,517 338,219
1,161,129 127,608 1,789,056 196,617
(1,379,805) (151,641)  (1,939,078) (213,105)
(1,379,805) (151,641)  (1,939,078) (213,105)
(218,676) (24,032) (150,022) (16,487)
62,398 6,858 212,420 23,345
(156,278) (17,175) 62,398 6,858
2,778 305 62,398 6,858
(159, 056) (17,480)
(156,278) (17,175) 62,398 6,858

69/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 30
10 EQ
2007 22
2007 22
2021 30 2020 30
2016 12 22
2021 30
2020
2020
23
12
12

2018 10

70/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

71/186



Q)

@)

®)

@

@

®

@)

()

(i)

(i)

72/186

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@iv)

Q)

@
(b)

12

2021 30 109.305 2020 106.935
0.722256 2020 0.792801

73/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

(b)

@
@ ()

74/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

45,000 0.075
0.01
3,750
59,898 2020 :60,000 2021
30 27,329 2020 8,682
0.02
1,000
15,327 2020 16,336 2021 30 4,965
2020 2,006
700 700

20

16,929 2020 17,033 2021 30
6,949 2020 1,381
0.70
87,749 2020 96,204 2021 30 32,725
2020 5,335
0.80
12,500
149,374 2020 150,000 2021 30 49,315
2020 12,441

75/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020
9,489,847 10,830,780
6,168,931 (521,071)
15,658,778 10,309,709
2021 30 2020 30
2017 10
2021 30 2020
2021 30
- 15,658,778 - 15,658,778
- 15,658,778 - 15,658,778
2020 30
- 10,309,709 - 10,309,709
- 10,309,709 - 10,309,709

76/186



12

2021

2021
2020
2020

2021

218,367

30

30

3,841

30

2020

2020

156,278

59,863

2020

249,217

30

30

2020
1,981

62,398

100

2020

77/186

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016

2021 2020
2,778 62,398
(159, 056) -
3,841
1,981 159,056
2017 20
3.0
2021 2020
21,836,700 24,921,700
249,217 284,423
(30, 850) (35,206)
218,367 249,217




10

11
2021 30

12
2021 30
2021

13

(a

10

2001 81

2021 28
30

78/186

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

50

50

2020

14,873,992
15,073,195



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020
96.30 82.00
3.70 18.00
100.00 100.00
2021 2020
10.10 17.00
37.20 23.10
2.80 5.20
9.40 5.50
7.50 6.50
9.30 9.60
4.30 9.10
15.70 5.00
- 1.00

96.30 82.00
3.70 18.00
100.00 100.00

2021 30 2020 30

79/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 30 10 2020 10
2021 2020
274 250
2021 30 10 2020 10
2021 30 10 2020 10
1,565,878 2020 1,030,971
2021 30 10 2020 10
1,565,878
2020 1,030,971
2021 30

-1.04 2020 0.61

80/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

coviD-19
2020 COVID-19
COVID-19
(b
2021 30
2021 30 2020 30
2021 30 156,278
2020 62,398
(c
20
2021
30
2021 30

31.94 2020 31.83

81/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 30
15,658,778 15,658,778
2,778 2,778
171,190 171,190
15,832,746 15,832,746
371,430 371,430
159,056 159,056
181,302 8,713 39,050 229,065
711,788 8,713 39,050 759,551
2020 30
10,309,709 10,309,709
62,398 62,398
10,372,107 10,372,107
8,528 8,528
113,738 4,983 46,050 164,771
122,266 4,983 46,050 173,299
14
15

82/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

16
9,800 745,128 2020 :186,236
2020
2021 2021
12

17
2021 27

83/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 April 2021

2021 2020
Noles 1rss Uss
ASSETS
Financial assets a fair value throwegh profit or loss 6,7 15,658,778 10,308,709
Cash and cash equivalents 8 2778 62.30%
Other aszels - 3282
Securities sold receivable 171,190 -
TOTAL ASBETS 15.832.746 10,375 389
LIABILITIES
Redemptions payable 371,430 8.518
Cash overdraft 8 159,056 -
Aceounts pavable and accrued hiabilines L 229,065 164,771
TOTAL LIABILITIES 759,551 173,299
EQUITY
Unitholders" capital 9 21,836,700 24,921,700
Dafeit { 6,763,505} {  14.719.610)
TOTAL EQUITY 12 15,073,195 140, 202,090
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 15,832,746 10,375,389
NUMBER OF UNITS IN IS5UE 9 218367 249.217
MET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 12 55,03 40,94

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PRECTOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

2021 2020
Hides LUss LI5%
INCOME
Bank interest - 532
- 582
EXPENSES
Administration and trustee fees 5 { 56,898) ( 60,000
Andn fees { 39,450 { 53,600
Costody fees 5 i 15,327) ( 16,336
Distribution fee 5 { 87.74%) { 96,204 )
Interesl expenses [ 980 -
Legal foes { 19,998) { I00E1)
Manazemen: fees 5 [ 149,374} ([ 150,000}
Transfer agent fees 3 { 16,929) ( 17.033)
Cther operaling expenses [ 27.766) i 44, 108)
{ 417471 { 467,362
WET LOSS BEFORE INVESTMENT AND
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES { 417471 { 466,780
INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE
DIFFERENCES
Met realized gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or 1oss 341,039 283,591
Met change in unrealized gam(loss) on financial
assets @t fair valoe through profit or loss 6,690,002 { 3077517
Met exchange gain{loss) 242 { 2]
7.031,283 {  2,794,008)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE GAINALOSS) FOR
THE YEAR 6,613.812 [ 3,260,788

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial statements.
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PRECTOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

Number of units Unitholders'

o standing Capital Dreficit Total equity
Liss uss Uss
Mole @ Mole 9
AL 30 Aprl 201% 284,423 28,442,300 [ 13,148,768 15,293,532
Change i equity
Redemption of units { 35206 { 3,520,600 1,689 946 ( 1830654
Net loss 3 - { 3.260,788) { 3,260.788)
At 30 Apnl 2020 249,217 24,921,700 [ 14719610 10,202,000
Change i equity
Redemption of unils { 30.850) [ 3,085000) 1,342,293 ( 1,742,707)
Met gain - - 6,613,812 6,613,812
AL 30 April 2021 218367 21836700 [ 6.763.505) 15,073,195

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these financial statements,
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

2021 2020
MNote uss Uss
CASH FLOWS FROM COPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Net gain/(loss) for the vear 6613812 { 3.260,738)
Adjustments for
Increase in secunities sold receivable (171,190} -
[Decrease’(increase) in ofher assets 3,282 ( 2
Increase/{decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 4,294 i 1,254
Proceeds from sale of financial assels at fair
value throwgh profitand loss 1,681,972 2,257.219
Met realised gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss { 341.039) ( 283,591)
Met change in unrealised (gain)1oss on financial
assets at fur valve through profit or loss [ 6.690.002) 3.077.517
Met cash Dows generated from operaling activities 1,161,129 1,789,056
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Payments on redemption of units [ 1.379%805) { 1,939.078)
Met cash flows wsed in financing activities [ 137T9.805) { 1,939.078)
MWET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS ( 218,676) { 150,022)
Cash and cash equivalents ot the begiming of the
year 62,395 212420
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR 8 [ 156,278) 2,398
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of financial position 2778 62,398
Bank overdrafis B { 153%,05a) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of cash flows { 156,278) G2, 398

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these financial statements,
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

L. THE TRUST

Precious Trost (the *Trust™) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a master trest deed
dated 22 May 2007 under the laws of the Cayman [slands, regulated as a mutual fiund under the Mutual
Funds Act {Revised) of the Cayman Islands, entered into between 10 EQ Management Bermmeda
Limated (the “ Manager™) and Bank of Bermuda ( Cavman ) Limated (the “Former Trostee™), The Trust
has been established as an wmbrella trust with the ability 1o isse separate series of units, each relating
10 a separate series trust. Each senes of units may be designated in such base currency as the Manager
in its sole discrelion may detemmine.

Vietnam Infrastrocture Fund (the Seres Trest” ) was constituted as a separale senes of units of the
Trust on 22 May 2007. As at 30 April 2021 and 2020, the Series Trust is the only series trast in
existence.

Pursuant 1o a Deed of Retirement and Appointment dated 22 December 2006 and the Amended and
Restated Master Trust Deed, the former tritee was replaced by FistCanbbean Intemational Bank
and Trust Company {Cayman) Limited {formery “CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited"} (the “Tmstee" ). Pursuant to the administration agreement, BNY Mellon Fund Management
{Cayman) Limited was appointed the Series Trust's administrator (the  Administrator), who has
appointed The Bank of New ¥ ork Mellon, Singapore Branch to be the Senes Trud ' s sub-admimstrator
{the *Snb- Administrator™) pursuant to a sub-adminigration agreement between the Administra or and
the Sub-Admanistrator to carry oul the day-te-day administration and transfer agency services of the
Senies Trust. Pursuant to the Global Custody Agreement, the Trustee has appointed The Bank of Mew
York Mellon as custodian (the * Custodian™ p of all securities and cash at any time delivered to the
Custodian in respedt of the Senes Trust,

The Series Trust's investment objective is to act as a feeder fund such that all or substantially all of
the assets of the Series Trust are invested in Forum One-VOG Patners Vietnam Fund (“VVEF” or the
“Investes Fund” ) As at 30 Apnl 2021, the Senes Trost is fuly invested in VVF shares.

=

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

Mew and amended standands and interpretations issued and effective for the fimancial period

The Series Trust has adopted the following new and revised [FRS, that have been issued and effective
for the accounting period beginning on or after | May 2020 in the current year's financial statements,
which is applicable to the Series Trust.

FTFRIC-Ini 23 Uncertainty over Income Tav Treatments

The interpretation addresses the accounting, for income taxes when tax ireatments involve uncertainty

that affects the application of IAS 12. The interpretation does not apply (o taxes or levies outside the

scope of TAS 12, nor does it specifically inclnde requirements relating to interest and penalties

associated with uncertain tax treatments, The interpretation spea fically addresses the following:

. Whether an entity considers uncertain tax trealments separately

. The assumptions an entity makes abo the examination of fax trestments by taxation
authornities

* How an entity detenmines taxable profits (tax losses), tax bases, unused tax losses, umused tax
credits and tax rates

. How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The interpretation has had no impact on the fnancial position or performance of the Seres Trost.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

2 CHANGES [N ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

Amencments to TAS I and I45 8: Definivion of Material

In October 2018, the LASE izzned amendments to TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS
8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors to align the definition of
‘matenial" across the standards andto clanfy certain aspects of the definition. The new definition staes
that, *Information is matenal if omitting. misstating or obscuning it could reasonably be expected 1o
influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements, which provide financial mformation about a specific reporting enfity.”

The amendments to the definition of matenal has had no significant impact on the Series Trust's
financial statements.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Series Trust's financial statements requires mansgement o make judgements,
estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities
and the accompanyving disclosures. Uncerainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
cutcomes that could require a materal adjustment to the carryving amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods.

JSudpeme s
Inthe process ofapplying the Series Trust's accounting policies, managemenl has made the following
judgements, which have the most sigmificant effect on the amowns recognised in the financial
stalements;

Crofig comncer:

The Series Trust's management has made an assessment of the Senes Trust"s ability o continme as a
going concem and is satisfied that the Series Trust has the resources to continge in business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncemainties that may cast
significant doutt upon the Series Trust's ability to continee as a going concem. Therefore, the
financial statements are prepared on the going concemn basis,

Taves

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and changes in tax
laws on foredgn withholding tax, Given the wide ramge of international investments, differences ansing
between the actual investment income and the assamptions made, or foture changes to such
assumpiions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The Series Trst
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tay
authorities of the respective countries in which it invests, The amounts of such provisions are based
on varnous factors, such as experience of previous tax aundits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority, Such differences of interpretation
may anse on @ wide vanety of 1mues depending on the condiions prevailing i the respective
investment’s domicile, As the Series Trust assesses the probability for ligation and subsequent cash
outflow with respect o axes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised,
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

i SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
{continued)

Esiimaion uncerfainly
Mo significant estimation uncenainty that has a significant nisk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amournds of assets and habilities within the next fnancial vear exists o the end of the reporting

period.

Fair value
For fair value of financial instruments, please nefier to Note 7.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporing
Standards ("IFRS™) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board ("lASBE™) and
interpretations issued by the Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttes (“TFRIC")
of the |ASE. The accounting poficies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial vear,
other than as disclosed in Note 2.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Series Trust have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
excepl for financial assets o far value through profit or loss (“FVPL™ ), that have been measured at
fair value. The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar (CUS3°) and are rounded to
the nearest dollar, except whene otherwise indicated,

As applicable for the current year and as fuher explained in the preceding basis of preparation
paragraphs, the significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust in the preparation of these
financial statements are as follows:

Financial instruments

{1 Classificarion
In accordance with [FRS 9, the Series Trust classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at
initial recognition info the categones of financial assets and fnancial habilities discussed below.

Finarreral asseis

The Series Trust classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured af amortised cost or
measured at FVPL on the basis of botl

- the entity's bosiness model for managing the financial assets and;

- the coniractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial asset.

e Finame fel assels measured af amoriised cost
A debi instrument is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal and
inderest on principal amoundt outstanding. The Series Trust mcludes in this category cash and
cash equivalents,
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (comtinned)

Einancial instruments {continued

{1 Classificarion (contimd
{bl Finaneial assets measuved at FVPL

A financial asset is measured at FVPL if:

(1} its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest ¢ SPP) on the principal amount outstanding or,

(2} it is not held within a bosiness model whose objective 15 either to colled contractual cash
Aows, or to bath collect contrac val cash Mows and sell or,

(3} af initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise anse from measunng assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

The Senes Tmst includes in this category, investment in VVF shares.

Financial liabilities

(e Finarcial labilities measwred e FVPL
A financial liability is measured at FVPL if it meets the definition of held for trading. The
Seres Trust does not have any financial lability in this category as at yearend.

(b Finarcial Fabilines measured af amortised cost
This category includes all Anancial liabilities, other than those measured at far value through
profit or loss, The Senes Trust mclodes in this category its redemptions payable and shor-term
payables.

(i} Recognition
The Series Trust recognises a financial asset or financial liability when, and only when. it becomes
a puirty to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All purchases and sales of financial instruments that require delivery within the timeframe
establizhed by regulation or market convention are recognised on the trade date, which is the date
on which the Series Tragt commits o purchase or sell the investment.

(Fii} fmitiaf measurement
Financial assets at FVPL are reconded in the gatement of financial position ar fair value, All
transaction costs for such investments are recognised in the satement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets (other than those classified az at FVPL) are measured initially at their fair value
plus any directly attribigable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.

Realized gains and loszes on disposals of financial instnoments are caleulated using the weighted
average method and are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income as “net realized gains'
{losses) on investments 9 fair value through profit or loss™,
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued )

(fvi Subsequent measurentent
After initial measurement, the Series Trust measures financial instruments which are clazsified a3
FVPL at fair value. Subsequent changes of those financial instraments are recorded in “net
unrealised gains or losses on investments @ far value through profit or loss”. The far valoe of
investments is based on their quoted market prices on a recognised exchange at the statement of
financial position date without any deduction for estimated fiture selling costs,

Financial liabilities, other than those classified at FVPL, are measimed at amonised cost using
effective interest method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised. as well as the through the amortisation process.

The effective interest method (ETR) is a method of calenlating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a fimancial bablity and of allocsting and recogmising the interest income or inferest
expense in profit or loss over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
dizcounts estimated fture cash payments or receipts throngh the expected life of the financal
assel or financial liability to the gross carmying amount of the financal asset or to the amortised
cost of the financial habality, When calculating the effective interest rate, the Series Tmst
estimates cash flows considenng all contractual terms of the financial instruments, but does nol
consider expeded credit loszes. The calculation inchides all fees paid or receivied between panies
to the contract that are an integral pan of the effective interest rate, transacion costs and all other
premiums of discounts,

vl Derecognition
A finamcial asset (or, where applicable, a pat of a financial asset or a part of a group of simlar
financial assets) is derecopmsed where the rights to receive cash flows from the assel have
expired, or the Series Trust has transferred s rights to receive cash flows from the assel, or lns
assumed an obligation o pay the received cash flows in full without matenal delay to a third party
under a pass-through arrangement and the Series Trust has:

(a) Tramsfemed substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
(b} Meither transfemred nor retained substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, it has
transfemred control of the assel

When the Series Trust has transferred its right to recerve cash flows from an asset (or has entered
into a pass-dhrough arangement), and las neither transfemed nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Series Tmst"s continuing involvement in the asset. [ntha case, the Series Tt alzo
recognises an associaled liability. The ransfemred asset and the associaied liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the nghts and obligations that the Series Trust has retained.

The Series Tmst derecogmizes a Anancial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expred.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued )

Impainment of financial asseds
For financial assets af amonized cost, impairment allowances are recognised under the general

approach where expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credil exposures where there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Series Trust is required
to provide for credit losses that result from possible default events within the next |2 months. For
those credit exposires where there has been a significant increase in credit nsk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure imespective of the uming of the default,

Fomeign cumency Lransac ions

The presentationand fanetional currency of the Series Trust is the United States Dollar. The functional
currency reflects the currency in which the Series Trust primarily generaies and expends cash from its
adtivities.

Transactions during the vear in cumencies other than the fimetional currency are recorded at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the mate of exchange prevaling st the end of the reporting perod.
Realised and unrealised exchange gains or losses on foreign cumency transactions are charged or
credited to profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as net exchange gains or losses,

The rate of exchange in effect &t 30 Aprl 2021 was USS1=JPY 109305 (2020: USS1= JFY 106.935)
and USS1=GBPL.TI2256 [2020: USS1= GBPO.7T92801}.

Eelated parties
A party is considered related to the Series Trust ift

{a) the party isa person or a close member of that person’s family and that person
(1} has contred or joint contrel over the Senes Trust;
(i) has significant influence over the Senes Trust; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Series Trust or of a parent of the
Series Trust; or

(b} the party 15 an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(1) the entity and the Serdes Trost are members of the same Group;
() ome enbity 15 an associae o joint ventie of the other entily (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the entity);
{iii) the entity and the Senes Trus are joint ventures of the same third pary;
(v} ome entity s a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the thind
entity;
(v} the entity 15 a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either the Series
Trast or an entity related to the Seres Tros;
ivi} the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (ay and
{vii) a person identified in {a)(1} has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
kev management personnel of the entity (or ofa parent of the entity).
(viii) the enfity, or any member of a group of which it is a pan, provides key management personnel
services bo the Series Trost or o the parent of the Series Trust.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash at bank, tme deposits with an orginal matority of three
maonths or less, and shor-term highly lquid ivestments readily convertible (o known amounts of cash
and subject to insigmi ficant risk of changes in value, Cash at bank 15 carmed at cost.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued )

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
Cash and cash equivalenis denominated in other cwrency are translated into U755 at the applicable

rate of exchange at the reporting date.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents as defined above, are net of
outstanding bank overdrafts, when applicable.

Unitholders® capital
Redeemable units are classified as equity instruments when:

+ The redeemable units entitle the holder to a pro rata share of the Series Trust's net assets in
the event of the Seres Tma’"s liquidation

*  The redeemable units are in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instrmments.

« Al redeemable umits in the class of instruments that 15 subordinate 10 all other classes of
instrumenits have identical features.

* The redeemable units do not include any contractual oblization 1o deliver cash or another
financial asset other than the holder's rights to a pro rata share of the Series Trust's net assets.

#  The total expected cash flows attribitable to the redeemable unitz over the life of the
instriument are based subdantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets
or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Series
Trust owver the life of the instrument,

In additvon to the mstrnoment having all the above features, the Senes Trust must have no other
financial instrument or contegct that has:

*  Total cash fows based substantially on the profit or losg, the change in the recognised net
fssels or the change in the fair value of the recognized and unrecognised net assets of the
Senes Trust, and

# The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the redeemable
umitholders.

The Series Trst continuonsly assesses the classification of the redeemable participating units. IF the
redeemable panticipating units cease (o have all the features or meet all the conditions set oul to be
classified as equity, the Series Trust will reclassify them a2 financial labilities and measure (hem at
fair value at the date of reclassification. with any differences from the previous carrying amount
recognisedin equity. If the redeemable units subzequently hawve all the features and meet the conditions
o be classified as equity. the Series Trost will reclassify them as equity instroments and measure them
at the camying amount of the liabilities at the date of the reclas fication,

The issuance, acquisition, and cancellation of the redeemable panticipating units are accounted for as
equity transachions, Upon isseance of uits, the consideration recaved 15 included in equity,

Mo gain or loss is recogmised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,
issuance, redemption or cancellation of the Series Trust™s own equity instruments,

Net gain of loss on financial assets at fair value throush profit or loss

This tem includes changes in the fair value of financal assets designated upon intial recogntion as
o fair value through profit or loss® and excludes imterest and dividend income.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued )

Ea | =8 i assels af Far valie 1 5 (cﬂm:iﬂl,led_]

Unrealized gains and lozses comprise changes in the fair value of financial instraments for the period
and from reversal of prior peniod's unrealised gains and losses for financial instmuments which were
realised in the reporting period

Realized gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit
of loss are calculated on aweighied average basis. They represent the difference between the financial
instrument's initial camying amount and disposal amount.

5. FEES

The Administrabor i= entitled to receive an administration fee at a minimum fee of US3435.000 per
annum or a fee ot the rate of 0L07 5% per annum of the net asset value acoued on and caleulated as a
each valustion day if such amount exceeds the mummom fee, which 15 payable monthly in ameans.
The Tmstee is entitled to receive a trustee fee equal 10 0.01% per anmuom of the net asset value accrued
on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable quanerdy in amears, subject (0 2 minimum
quarterly fee of US33, 750

The administration and trustee fees for the year totaled USS5%.898 (2020; USS60,0000, of which
LI8527,329 15 payable at 30 Apal 2021 (2020: USS8,682) and is included in accounts payable and
accred liabilities,

Custody fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive a fee at the rte of (L02% per annum of the net asset value, accred
on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in amrear, subject to a minimum fee
of USS 1,000 per menth, The Custodian is also entitled to receive transaction fees and other ancillary
fees.

The custody fees for the vear totaled USS15.327 (2020: USS16,336), of which US%4,965 is pavable
at 30 April 2021 (2020; USS2,006) and is included in accounts pavable and accrued liabilities,

Tremsfer agent fees
The Administrator is entitled Lo atransfer agent fee of USST00 per month forthe Series Trust, USST00
per month per Unitholder and a transaction fee of US320 per transaction.

The transfer agent fees for the vear totaled US516,929 (2020: USS17,033), of which U356 949 is
pavable at 30 April 2021 (2020 17551,381 )and is included in accounts payable and accred liabilities.

Ace Secunties Co, Limated (the * Agent Company and Distnbutor” yis entitled to receive a distribagion
fiee &t the rate of 0, 70%& per anmom of the net asset value, accred on and caloulated as o each valuaion
day and payvable monthly in amears,

The distribution fee for the vear totaled USSET 749 (2020: US55%6,204) of which US332,725 is
pavable at 30 April 2021 (2020 U585,335) amd is included in accounts payable and accmed liabilities.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

5. FEES (continned)

Management fee

The Manzsger is entitled to receive a management fee of 0.30% per annum of the net asset value
accried on and calculated as ot each valuation day and payable monthly in amears, subject to a
manamiom monthly fee of US%12,500,

The management fiee for the yvear totaled USS 149,374 (2020: US5150,000) of which U'534% 315 is

pavable at 30 April 2021 (2020 USS12,441) and is incloded in accounts payvable and accrued
liabilities.

fi. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020

5% Uss
Financial asseis at FVPL. at cost 9,489 847 10,830,730
Unreahised gains/{ losses) 6,168,931 i 521.071)
Financial aszeis ai FVPL 15658778 10,305, T

Asat 30 April 2021 and 2020, the financial assets al FYPL held by the Series Trs consigt of VVF
ghares,

T, FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

Fair value measurements are disclosed by level of the following fair value measurement hieranchy:

Qucded prices (unadjusied ) in active markets for identical assets or liabilifies (level 1),
Valuation techmigues for which the lowest level inpst that is significant to the fair value
measurement is direct 1y or indirectly observable (level 2.

»  Valuation techrigques for which the lowest level inpu that 15 sigmficant to the far valoe
megsurement is unobservable (level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is calegonised in its
entirety should be deermuined on the basis of the lowest level inpat that 15 sigmaficant to the fair valoe
measuremnent in itz entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the far
value measurement in its entivedy. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement.

Assessing the significance of a particular inpat to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgement, considenng factors specific to the assei or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgement by the Manager.
The Manager considers observable datato be market datathat 15 readily avalable, regularly dignbuted
or updated, reliable and verfiable, nol propriefary, and provided by independent sources that are
actively involved in the relevant market.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

7. FalR VALUE ESTIMATION (continmed)

The shares are valued baszed on quoted market price, which 15 based on the dailly NAV/share as
published in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The VVF shares (Class A shares in Fonum One) were
only initially available to oniginal holders of Vietnam Infrastrocture Private Equity (VNI ) shares but
may, af the inderying Manager's discretion, be subscribed for by new investors. The Series Trust and
a mumber of other investors were holders of the VNI shares and holdings in a pavate equity portfolio
listed on the Altemative Investment Market (*ADM™) which was fully redeemed over the period to
Cretober 2017, As the marketing of the V'VF shares is therefore restncted they are classified within
level 2. The Series Trust does not adjust the quoted prices for these instruments as they ane redeemalble
in the normal course of business @ 3 business days’ notice,

The table below analyzes the financial assets at 30 April 2021 and 2020 by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurement 1= categorized;

Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
30 Apnl 2021 Uss Uss LUss Lss
Financial asseis af FVPL
Investment in VVF shares - 15,658,778 - 15,658,778
< 15,658,778 F 15,658,778
30 April 2020
Financial assets oi FVPL
Investment in VVF shares - 10,309,709 - 100, 309, T
E 10,305, 709 N 10,309 709
Investrment i Opiet- UCITS comphiant fumd

The Manager considers the quated price of the VVF shares (o be an appropriate measune of its Fair
value. The Manager has traded in the VVF shares on behalf of the Series Trust a mmber of times
ginee the restructunng in December 2016, trades which have always been made at the quoted price.
The quoted price of the VVF shares is used as an input into measuring the fair value. In measuring the
fair value, consideration is paid to any transactions in the shares of the Underying Fund. Since there
is no adjmstment needed to the net asset value and the level of trading in the fund, the Series Trust
classi fies the investment in Undedying Fund as Level 2.

The Series Trst did not hold any Level 3 securities during the vear,

During the years ended 30 Apnl 2021 and 2020, there was no transfer of fair value measurement
between Level 1 and Level 2 nor transfier into or oul of Level 3.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020
s Lg%
Cash al bank 2778 62,3198
Cash at bank (overdraft) [ 159,056 -

Asat 30 Aprl 2021, the cash ot bank (overdraft) of USS156,278 (2020: 15562, 398) represents an
imerest bearing Japanese Yen deposit of JFY 3,841 (2020; JFY 3,841, Great British Pound deposit of
GBEPL1,981 (2020: GBP1,981) and United States dollar with an overdraft of US$159,056 {2020
deposit of 175839,863). All deposits are placed with The Bank of New York Mellon, an affiliate
company of the Tmstee.

. UNITHOLDERS® CAPITAL

Subscription of unlts. Units will be available for subscription a1 the applicable subscription price on
each Dealing Day, which 15 the 20th calendar day of each month providing that if such day is not a
Business Day then the Business Day immediately following such day, commencing in February 2017,
excepd as described in the Offering Memorandum. The subscription price per Unit will be the Net
Aszet Value per Unit as at such Dealing Day. The sales charge as deseribed herein will also be clarged
to the applicants,

The Units will carry a sales charge of up to 3.0% (nat including local consumption or other taxes) of
the subscription price per Uit unless warved by the Distnbutor, Such sales charge shall be reained
b the Dastribtor or its delegate,

Repurchase of units. Units may be submitted for repurchasze at the option of Unitholders as at each
Repurchase Day, which is each Drealing Day and’or such other day or days as the Manager may from
time fo dme determine in respect of the Series Trust, Unitholders may only submit a repurchase
request in respect of settled Units, for which payment has been received in respect of their imitial
purchase,

Units may be repurchased by reference to a number of Units or a cash value. The minimum Units or
cash valpe that may be submitted for repurchase in respect of a Repurchase Day is 1 Uit or UVSD 10,
a5 applicable or such other number of Units or cash amount as the Manager may determine generally
of in any paticular case. There is no requirement that a Unitholder must hold a minimum number or
value of Units.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

9. UNITHOLDERS' CAPITAL (continued)
Tranzactions in wnits for the vear ended 30 April 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
uss Uss
Units in issue;
218,367 wnils (2020: 249,217 units) 21,836,700 24,921,704
Units Units
Mumber of issued and fully paid wrs:
At the beginning of the yvear 249,217 284422
Redeemed during the year { L850 { 35,206)
Al the end of the year 218,367 249,217

The Trustee will, when required (o do so by the temms of the Amended and Restated Master Trost
Dreed or af the request in writing of the unitholders registered as holding units the aggregate net asset
wvalue per unit of which is not less than one-tenth of the net asset value of all series truss if what is
proposed is a umitholders resolution or &t the request in wrting of unitholders registered as holding
not less than one-tenth in number of units of the relevant Series Trest if what is proposed 12 a Series
Trust resolution, convene 2 meeting of all wtholders or unitholders of a Senes T, asthe case may
be, at such time and place set forth in the notice convening the mesting,.

Ay director or ot her authonsed official ofthe Trustee or of the Manager will be entitled to attend and
speak at any meeting. The guorum requirements will be two unitholders unless there is only one
unitholder in which case the quorum will be that one unitholder.

Al any meeting any resolution put to the vote of the meeting will be decided by a poll which will be
taken in writing and if approved by urdtholders holding units the aggregate net asset value per umit of
whichis at least 50 percent of the net asset value of all senes trusts iF what is proposed 5 2 amtholders
resolution or the unitholders holding at least one hallin momber of units of the relevant Series Trust
in issue if what is proposed i2 a Series Trust resolution, the result of a poll will be deemed to be the
rezoliution of the meeting.

14, TAXATION

Under the current laws of the Cayvman Islands, the Trust and the Sertes Trust will not be liable for any
profits or capital gains tax in the Cayman Islands.

The Trust has received an undenaking from the Govemor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islamds in
accordance with Section 81 of the Trusts Law (2001 Revision) of the Cayman [slands that, fora period
of 50 years from the date of the creation of the Trust, any legislation enacted in the Cayman [slands
imposing tax computed on profits or income, or compued on capital assets, gains or appreciation or
any fax in the natre of estate duty or inhentance tax shall not be applicable to the Trust.

Income from other junsdictions, including distributions from secunties issued i other countries, may

be subject to withholding or capital gains taxes imposed by such countries, Withholding taxes on
foreign income may be withheld in accordance with the applicable country 's tax rates.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

11. DISTRIBUTION

Mo distribution was paid or payable duning the vear ended 30 Apnl 2021 (2020: Mil).

12: RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSET VALUE PER THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE

Az of 30 April 2021, the andited NAY does not cormespond o the respective indicative NAV released,
The indicative net asset value (WNAV) of USD 14,873,992 is for value date 28 April 2021, wheress the
WAV of USD 13,073,195 is for vear end date 30 April 2021, which is the audited NAV.

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ANMD RISKE MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

The Series Trust's investing acivitics expose it to varous types of risk which are associated with the
financial instruments in which it invests in, The most imporant types of finanaal nsk to which the
Series Trust 15 exposed are market nisk, credit risk, and hquidity risk, Market nsk includes foreign
cumency risk, price risk and inferest rafe fsk.

The investment management policy of the Senes Trust is determined through the following process:
The Manager provides non-discretionary management of the Series Trust's assets and primarily will
ensure investments are congistent with the investment objectives of the Seres Trust and is responable
for taking reasonable steps amd exercising all due diligence to avoid the property of the Series Tst
being used or invested contrary 1o the investment and borrowing limutations set out in the Trust Deed
and the Offering Memomandum. The Board of the Manager has overall responsibility for the
management of the Series Trst structure to the extent of its responsbilities as defailed in the relevant
Trust Deed and Offering Memorandum,

The investment management policy is non-discretionary; the Series Trust will invest virtually all of
its assetz in the V'VF shares, which as a result, the performance of the Senes Trust will depend almost
entirely on the performance of VVF,

The nature and extent of the financial insgraments outstanding ot the reporting date and the nsk
management policies engployed by the Senes Trust are discussed below,

{a)Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of financial assets will fuctnate as a result of changes in market
prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the mdividnal assets or factors affecting,
all assets in the market. Market risk is of a general nature, affecting all types of investment. The trend
in the prices of transferable securities is determined mainly by the trend in the financial markets and
by the economic development ofthe issuers, who are themselves affected bath by the overall atuation
of the global economy and by the economic and political conditions prevailing in each country,

The Senes T is exposed to market risk on s investments which are VVF shares. In consideration
of VVF s imvestment objectives, the value of VVF s assets is closely related to the evaolution of a given
strategy, markets or assels. As a consequendce, there is a polential risk ansing from the evolution and
fluctuation of the strategy. markets or assets, and investments in VVF are as well subject to the same
market fuctustions.
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{a) Market risk (contimued)

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Manager of the Investee Fumd diversifies and orgamzes the Investee Fund’s undedying

investments into broadly defined investment strategies of “categones”.
are not limdted to the following:

Categories may inchede, but

2020

3200
18.00%

2021
Vietnam
Listed equity securities 06.30%
Other liquid assets 3.70%
Total 104, (0

100 (02

Azzet allocation among the varions strategies is determined solely by the Mamager of the Investee
Fund. From time to time, the Series Trust may invest a significant amount of its assets inone, orina
small number of, such categories. There are no significant positions in one issner. and there is no

leverage in VVF.

The Manager of the Investee Fund manages the Senes Trust's exposure by diversifying the underdying
investments with different nsks and managing the exposure according to different market
emvironments, The market risk on all of the Investee Fund's investments is managed by the Manager
of the Invesiee Fund by taking a long-temm investment horizon in a diversified porfolio without any

restriction regarding the industry sector or the geographic location,

quantitative analysis in the doe dilipence process.

The asset allocation of VVF's portfolio by industry sector is a3 follows:

employing qualitative and

2021 2020
Industrials 10.10% 17.00%
Financials 37.20% 23.10%
Consumer Staples 2.80% 5.20P%
Materials & A40%% 350
Consumer Discreionary 7.50% 6. 50
Information Technalogy 9.30% G609
Utilities 4.30% 210
Real estate 15.70% 50025
Energy - 1.00%%
Total investment in equity securities 96.30% B200Mw
Other liguid assets 1.70% 18,000
Total net asscis 100 00 T o
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13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued )

{a) Market risk (contimued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign curency risk is the rigk that the value of financial assets or liabilities will fluctuate due 1o
changes in foreign exchange rates. Units issued by the Series Trust are denominated in US Dollars
and nmits are only issued and redeemed in that cumency, The mejority of the assets of the Series Trsst
are invested in VVF shares which are denominated in US Dollars,

The Series Trod is exposed to foreign currency risk to the extent that the VVF shares have exposure
to cuwmency risk as the underving assets to which they are linked are traded in local cumencies,
Exchange rate fluctustions and local cumrency devaluation could have a matenal effect on the valee
of the VVF shares, which are expressed in US Dollars,

At 30 Apal 2021 and 2020, majonty of the Series Trust’s fomncial assets and Habilities are
denominated in USD. However, the Series Trust also has exposune 1o cumency nsk becanse it has
assets and liabilities dencminated in currencies other than the US Dollar.

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the US Dollar againg the following cumencies at 30 Apnl 2021 (2020 10%6)
would have increased/decressed net assets by the amounts shown below, This anal ysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular interest rales, remain constant,

2021 2020
5% Lss
Nel Assels
IFY 4 4
GBP 274 250

A 1025 weakening of the US Dollar againg the above currency ot 30 Aprl 2021 {2020: 10%5) would
have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies Lo the amounts shown above, on the
basis that all other vanables remain constant,

Those investors whose fnancial assets are measured in currency other than the US Dollar will be
exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange mtes. Even when the net azset value of units ofthe Series
Trust is greater than the principal initially invested in US Dollars, the net asset value may have
decreased in terms of the investors” cumencies,

FPrice risk

Price risk anzes mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instraments held which are
classified as * financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™. It represents the potential loss the
Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements.

Price risk of the Series Trust anses from price Auctustions of the VVF Shares, These price fluctuations
will be a5 a result of changes in the volatility of the underlying irvestments of VVF. These fluctuations
will be reflected in the price of the VVF shares and wall affect the Senes Trust s net asset value.

The price of the VVF shares is quoted and svailable for trading on a daily basis. While there has been
trading activity in the vear it should be noted that the VVF shares are only avalable to a restncted
market. Other classes of shares in Forum One-VOG Patners Vietnam Fund invest into the same pool
of assets but ane subject (o different fee and marketing, gructures.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continned)

{a) Market risk (contimued)
Price visk (continued)

The return on the units depends on changes in value of the undedying investments of the V'VF shares.
Thetrading price of the uiits may vary considerably before the maturty date dug, among ol her things,
to fluctustions in the price of the underlying investments of the VVF shares and other events. The
units are nod equivalent to investing directly in the underlying investments of VVF.

A 10P% (2020; 10%%) increase in the market price of the VVF shares at 30 April 2021, with all other
vanables held constant, will increase the Series Trust's net asset valne and profits Iy approximately
USS1,565878 (2020: USS1,030,971) A 10%s (2020: 10%40) decrease in the market price of the VVF
shares at 30 April 2021, with all other varables held constant, will decrease the Series Trust's net
asset value and profits by approximately USS1.565,878 (2020 US81030.971). This sensitivity
analy=is represents management's best estimate of a reasonably possible change.

Some hmitations of sensitivity analysis are:
» the market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and
accurate number
*  the market price information represents a hypothetical owtcome and 15 nod intended to be
predictive; and
»  future markel conditions can vary significantly from those experienced in the past.

Teterest vade risk
Interest rate fsk is the risk that the value of financial instruments and fiture cash flows will fluctuate
as a result of changes in market inferest rates,

The Series Trust's financial assets at fair value through profit of loss are not exposed to any significant
interest rate risk. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis has been included.

The Series Trust 13 exposed to inferest rate risk on its cash and cash equivalents, which are placed in
interest bearing accounts. The cash and cash equavalents (overdratt) held at 30 Aprid 2021 amounted
1o { 104 (2020 0061%) of the Series Trust s net asse value, The sensitivity to changes in interest
raes on these amounts and their consequent impact of the Senes Trus's net asset value is considered
not to be material.

COVTO 19 risk

The outbreak of COVID-19 m early 2020 and the response of govemments in dealing with the
pandemic has had significant impact on global financial markets and economic activity. The Manager
will pay close altention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the
financial position and operating resulis of the Series Trst, We do not consider it practicable to provide
a quantitative or qualitative estimate of the potential impact of the outbreak on the Sedes Trust at this
time, The Manager will continee to remain alert to the situation and monitor its cash flow and capital
requiremments.
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continned)

(b Credit risk

Credit risk anises from financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with financial
institutions amd banks. Credit risk relates to the extent to which failures by counterparties to discharge
their chligations could reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial mstruments on hand as
at the reporting date,

As of 30 April 2021, all of the assets including cash and cash equivalent of the Sernes Tros are held
by the Custodian which is The Bank of New Yotk Mellon in segregated accounts, The Series Trust is
exposed to credit risk of the Custodian, The Bank of Mew York Mellon has a credit rating of A1 wath
Moody's and Ad- with Fitch on 30 Aprl 2021 and 2020

Fineneial azsets subject o TFRS 95 fmpairmient requine ments

The Series Trst's financial assets subject to the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9 are only
cash and cash equivalents. At 30 April 2021, the total net cash and cash equivalents (overdraft) was
U5%156,278, on which no loss allowance had been provided (2020; total of US$62,398, on which no
loss had been mmcurred), There 15 not conmdered to be any concentration of credit nsk within these
assets, Mo assels are considered impaired and no amounts have been written off in the perod,

Financial assets not subject o IFRS @5 (mpatrorent regquirements

The Series Trust is exposed to credit risk on its financial instraments. They are not subject to [FRS
s impairment requirements as they are measured at FVPL. The canryving value of these assets
represent the Series Trost's masamum exposure (o credit nsk on financial instruments nal subject to
the IFRS 9 impairment requiremnents on the respective reporing dates. Hence, no separale maximiim
exposure to credit nsk disciosure 1= provided for these mstroments,

{c) Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk iz the risk that the Series Trust will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associaled with financial assets. Liguidity risk may result from an inability to sell a
financial asset quickly at anamount close toits fair value.

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as at each repurchase day which is
the 20th calendar day of each month and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determing in respect of the Series Trust, Investment of the
Senies Tmsts or VVEF's assets in relatively illiquod investments, if any, may restrict the ability 1o
dispose of the mvestments al a pnce and tme that either wishes to do so. As of 30 Apnl 2021, neither
the Seres Trust nor VVF has assets in relatively illiquid investments.

At 30 April 2021 the Series Trest held approximately 31.94% (20200 31.83%4) of the otal investmemnt
in Forum One-V'CG Partners Vietnam Fund,
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PRECIOUS TEUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUNL»

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued )
{¢) Liquidity risk (contimed)
A summary of the analysis 15 as follows:

Greater than Greater than

1 month, 3 months,
L ess than less than 3 less than 1 More than
As at 30 Apnl 2021 I month maonths year I vear Total
Uss Uss Uss 58 Uss
Financial assels
Financial assets &l FVPL 15,658,778 - - - 15,658,778
Cash and cash
equivalents 2778 . - - 2,778
Secumties sold recavable 171,190 - - - 171,150
Total Minandal asseis 15,832,746 - - - 15832746
Financial liabilities
Redemptions payable 371,430 - - - 371,430
Cash overdraft 159,056 - - - 159,056
Accounts payable and
accrued labilities 151,302 3.713 39,050 - 229,065
Total fMinancial Wabilities 711,788 8713 39 050 - 754, 351
Grester than Greater than
1 month, 3 months,
Less than less than 3 less than 1 More than
As at 30 Aprl 2020 | month months year 1 year Total
LSS Lrss uUss Uss Uss
Financial assets
Financial assets at FVPL 10,309,709 . - = 10,309.70%
Cash and cash
equivalents 62,3598 - - - 62,398
Total Nnandal assets 10,372,107 - - = 10,372,107
Financial llabilities
Redemptions payable 8528 - - - 8,528
Accounts payvable and
accrued liabilities 113738 4,983 46,050 - 164,771
Total financial Habilities 122,266 1,983 46,050 - 173,299
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PRECTIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 April 2021

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Manager is responsible under the Amended and Restaled Master Trust Deed for the management
of the investment and re-imvestment of the assets of the Series Tmst, the exercize of the power 1o
bormow money in respect of the Series Trust, declare and direct the Trustee to make distributions or
interim distributions to the wtholders out of the meome and/or the capatal of the Sertes Trust and for
the issue and repurchase of units of the Senes T,

The Trustee is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trost Deed for the admimstration
of the Series Trust and for keepang the register of urntholders.

All the related panties are entitled 1o receive fees and expenses cut of the assets of the Series Trust.
Details of these fees are zet out in Note 5 to the financial statements.
15, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Manager considers the capital of the Series Trust to comprise the following:
*  The net proceeds from subscriptions for and redemptions of units of the Senes Trust; plus
*  Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL; plus

« Nt mesulls from operaions.

The Series Trust invests virtually all of it assets in accordance with the investment objective (Mote 1)
of the Series Troat and the investment management policy is non-discretionary.

There are no regulatery or statwory capital requirements (o which the Senes Trust must comply,

16, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of the financial statemends, 9800 redeemable
participating shares were redeemed for US8745,128 (2020 US5186,236) while no subscriptions were
made (2020¢ Nil).
Repurchases and subscriptions for units in the Trust were temporarily suspended from 7 June 2021 by
the Trustee and the suspension was subsequently lifted on 12 July 2021. The suspension was dug to
the restrictions put in place on the underlying imvestments by the custodian,
There were no other material events after the end of the reporting period up to the date ofthe
authorisation of these financial statements.

17. APPROV AL OF THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trstee and Manager on 27
Angust 2021,
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2021
17,223,399.57 1,892,851,613
361,611.44 39,741,097
16,861,788.13 1,853,110,515

205,267

82.15 9,028
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750,000 8,243
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2016 10 750,000
2017 10 750,000
2018 10 750,000
2019 10 750,000
2020 10 750,000
2021 10 750,000
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2021 17
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365,186,700.73

310,371,361.89

147,005,310.60

62,107,090,953
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1Q EQ
2020 12 31
2020 2019
4,033,538 443,286 2,133,979 234,524
385,018 42,313 442,373 48,617
4,418,556 485,599 2,576,352 283,141
(2,000) (220)
4,416,556 485,380 2,576,352 283,141
4,416,556 485,380 2,576,352 283,141
11 750,000 82,425 750,000 82,425
3,666,556 402,955 1,826,352 200,716
4,416,556 485,380 2,576,352 283,141

2021 18
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2020 2019
2,327,511 255,793 2,940,188 323,127
2,327,511 255,793 2,940,188 323,127
(727,718) (79,976) (974,634) (107,112)
155,759 17,118 (256,294) (28,167)
1,755,552 192,935 1,709,260 187,848
86,735 9,532 6 1
(2,083) (229) (7.961) (875)
84,652 9,303 (7.955) (874)
1,840,204 202,238 1,701,305 186,973
1,840,204 202,238 1,701,305 186,973
1,840,204 202,238 1,701,305 186,973
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1Q EQ

2020 12 31

2019 750,000 82,425 125,047 13,743 875,047 96,168
1,701,305 186,973 1,701,305 186,973
1,701,305 186,973 1,701,305 186,973

2019 12 31 750,000 82,425 1,826,352 200,716 2,576,352 283,141

2020 750,000 82,425 1,826,352 200,716 2,576,352 283,141

1,840,204 202,238 1,840,204 202,238

1,840,204 202,238 1,840,204 202,238

2020 12 31 750,000 82,425 3,666,556 402,955 4,416,556 485,380
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10 EQ

2020 12 31

2020 2019
12 (55,272) (6,074) 341,424 37,522
(55,272) (6,074) 341,424 37,522

6 1

6 1

(2,083) (229) (7,961) (875)

(2,083) (229) (7.,961) (875)

(57,355) (6,303) 333,469 36,648

442,373 48,617 108,904 11,969

385,018 42,313 442,373 48,617

385,018 42,313 442,373 48,617

385,018 42,313 442,373 48,617
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(155,759) 256,294
2020 2019 12 31 10 EQ
10 EQ 1Q EQ
@)
2020 2019
13 6
86,722
86,735 6
(b)
2020 2019
(2,083) (7,961)

(2,083) (7,961)
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(©
2020 2019
86,735 6
(2,083) (7,961)
84,652 (7,955)
2035
2020 2019
36,357 113,844
195,877 263,942
3,792,713 1,749,603
6,590 6,590
3,995,180 2,020,135
2020 2019
2,000
12 31 2,000
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2020 2020 2019 2019

232,234 377,786

3,792,713 1,749,603

385,018 442,373
4,409,965 2,569,762

(2,000)
(2,000)
2020 2019

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
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12
2020 2019
1,840,204 1,701,305
2,083 7,955
1,842,287 1,709,260
(1,743,800) 642,044
2,000 (2,009,880)
(155,759)
(55,272) 341,424
2020 2020 2020 12 31
442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
13
102 33.1
14
1Q EQ
2020 12 31
15
2021 29 2020 12 31 2,500,000
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Note USD$ USD$
Current assets

Debtors and prepayments 8 4,033,538 2,133,979
Cash at bank and in hand 385,018 442,373
4,418,556 2,576,352
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 9 (2,000) -
Net current assets 4,416,556 2,576,352
Net Assets 4,416,556 2,576,352

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 750,000 750,000
Retained earnings 3,666,556 1,826,352
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 4,416,556 2,576,352

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 6 to 18 were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 June 2021
and signed on its behalf by:

[Signature] [Signature]

Gary Carr David Rourke
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Total profit and total comprehensive income for the year
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Notes USD$ USD$

Turnover 2,327,511 2,940,188
Gross profit 2,327,511 2,940,188
Administrative expenses (727,718) (974,634)
Other operating gains/(losses) 155,759 (256,294)
Operating profit 4 1,755,552 1,709,260
Interest receivable and similar income 6a 86,735 6
Interest payable and similar charges 6b (2,083) (7,961)
Net interest receivable/(payable) 6c 84,652 (7,955)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,840,204 1,701,305
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 - -
Profit for the financial year 1,840,204 1,701,305
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,840,204 1,701,305

All results derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Called up share Retained

capital earnings Total Equity

UsD$ UsD$ usb$

Balance as at 1 January 2019 750,000 125,047 875,047
Profit for the year - 1,701,305 1,701,305
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,701,305 1,701,305
Balance as at 31 December 2019 750,000 1,826,352 2,576,352
Balance as at 1 January 2020 750,000 1,826,352 2,576,352
Profit for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Balance as at 31 December 2020 750,000 3,666,556 4,416,556

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note USD$ USD$
Net cash from operating activities 12 (55,272) 341,424
Taxation paid - -
Net cash generated from operating activities (55,272) 341,424
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received - 6
Net cash used in investing activities - 6
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (2,083) (7,961)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,083) (7,961)
Net_(decrease)/lncrease in cash and cash (57,355) 333,469
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 442,373 108,904
Cash_and cash equivalents at the end of the 385,018 442,373
year:
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 385,018 442,373
Total of cash and cash equivalents 385,018 442,373

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

@

(b)

Summary of compliance

The individual financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the "Company') have
been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102, “ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom
and the Republic of lIreland” (“ FRS 102" ).

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company accounting policies.

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control is the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Where the Group owns less than 50% of the voting powers of an entity but controls the entity
by virtue of an agreement with other investors which give it control of the financial and
operating policies of the entity it accounts for that entity as a subsidiary.

Any subsidiary undertakings or associates sold or acquired during the 1 January are included

up to, or from, the date of change of control or change of significant influence
respectively.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b

©

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Where control of a subsidiary is lost, the gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The cumulative amounts of any exchange differences on translation,
recognised in equity, are not included in the gain or loss on disposal and are transferred
to retained earnings. The gain or loss also includes amounts included in other comprehensive
income that are required to be reclassified to profit or loss but excludes those amounts
that are not required to be reclassified.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Going Concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and have adopted the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Although the company revenue reduced year on year in 2020, the cost base was managed
appropriately to maintain profitability. In addition to this the Company continued to be
cash generative, while maintaining the Financial Position of the Company.

The Company is part of the 1Q-EQ Group (the “ Group” ) and overall debt funding is managed
at a Group level. The Group has a record of generating cash from operations, at the same
time significant investment is made to contribute to the long term growth and development of
the Group. The majority of the Group"s revenues are recurring in nature and there are
significant non-underlying costs which mainly relate to the acquisition, integration and
project development costs, all of which are focused on the long term growth of the Group.
The finance structure has been designed to accommodate this growth by, rather than
repayment, capitalising the interest on the convertible preferred equity certificates

(* CPECs” ) allowing reinvestment into the Group.

The Group has demonstrated a solid resilience of the business model in 2020 with revenue and

EBITDA up on 2019 despite the Covid-19 Pandemic. The Group has proven its ability to service
customers and win new customers with its employees working from home.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

©

(D

)

()

©)

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

Going Concern (continued)

The Directors have undertaken a review of the Company®s trading forecast for the coming 12
months from the date of signing of these financial statements, which shows that the Company
is expected to remain profitable and continue to be cash generative. Therefore, the
Directors believe that the Company will continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.

Foreign currency

Functional and presentational currency
The Company®"s functional and presentational currency is United States Dollars ($).

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the underlying
entities using the spot exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate.
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the
exchange rate when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement within * Foreign exchange

(loss)/gain.”

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect
of services rendered from the provision of administration, corporate management, trustee
services together with ancillary services, net of any discounts and rebates allowed by the
Company, and company value added taxes. Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, with
deferral of any cash received in advance. Deferred income is released to the income
statement over the period to which it relates. Other revenue items relate to:
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2 Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

(e) Revenue recognition (continued)

( ) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis.

( ) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

( ) Management recharge income/expense
Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incurred
by/from subsidiaries and other group companies during the year.

( ) Management fees
Management fees are received from the investment funds under management as compensation for
the management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per
quarter to 0.2% per quarter of either the product of the initial unit price and the number
of units in issue at a Valuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset
Value (all as defined in the Offering Memoranda and/or Appendices of the relevant investment
funds) for all funds. In some cases, these management fees are subject to a minimum and/or
an additional fixed fee also exists.

( ) Consultancy fees
Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for services
provided by the Company relating to the set up or termination of an investment fund or sub
fund. Such fees are determined on a case-by-case basis.

(f) Administrative expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within operating expenditure.

(g) Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2

Q)

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, non-financial assets not carried at fair value are assessed to
determine whether there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. If there is such an
indication, the recoverable amount of the asset is compared to the carrying amount of the
asset.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Value in use is defined as the present value of the future pre-tax and
interest cash flows obtainable as a result of the assets continued use. The pre-tax and
interest cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that represents the current
market risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset.

IT the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be lower than the carrying amount,
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, unless the asset has been revalued when the amounts is recognised
in other comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation.
Thereafter any excess is recognised in the income statement.

IT an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but only to the extent that the
revised carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

Financial instruments

The Company has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial
instruments.
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(

(

)

)

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including amounts due from group undertakings are initially
recognised at the transaction price. Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or (b)
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to
another party or (c) despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of
ownership, control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical
ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing
additional restrictions.

Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including amounts owed to group undertakings and other payables
are initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the
future payments (net of directly attributable issue costs) discounted at the market rate of
interest. Issue costs are recognised in the income statement over the term of the debt on an
effective interest rate basis.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the
contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial
statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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)

Q)

(m

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Company"s shareholders are recognised as a

liability in the financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other
distributions are approved by the stakeholders. These amounts are recognised in the

statement of changes in equity.

Related party transactions

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within

the same group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless,
in the opinion of the directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect
of the transactions on the Company financial statements
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(

)

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Provisions for bad debts and Accrued income

The Company recognises trade debtors and accrued income at recoverable amounts. The
recoverable amount of trade debtors and accrued income is assessed on an individual basis
using the judgement of management to assess the recoverable value of these assets and
guantify the level of provisioning which takes into account an assessment of the customer®s
current and historic financial position, age profile of work in progress and outstanding
debt and assessment of historical recovery rates.

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after (crediting)/charging:

2020 2019
Usb$ UsD$
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (155,759) 256,294

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 the audit fee of the Company was paid by 1Q EQ
Group Management (Isle of Man) Limited, a related entity under common control.

Employees and Directors
Key management compensation
Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation is

borne by other companies related by common control, primarily 1Q EQ Bermuda Limited and 1Q
EQ Management (Jersey) Limited and is therefore not disclosed in these financial statements.
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6 Net interest expense

(a) Interest received and similar income

2020 2019
UsD$ UsD$
Bank interest receivable 13 6
Interest on intercompany loan 86,722 -
Total interest receivable and similar income 86,735 6
(b) Interest payable and similar charges
2020 2019
USD$ UsD$
Other (2,083) (7,961)
Total interest expense on financial liabilities (2,083) (7,961)
(c) Net interest expense
2020 2019
USD$ UsD$
Interest receivable and similar income 86,735 6
Interest payable and similar charges (2,083) (7,961)
Net interest expense 84,652 (7,955)

7 Income Tax
Under current Bermuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on

either income or capital gains. The Company has received an undertaking from the Minister of
Finance in Bermuda exempting it from any such taxes at least until the year 2035.
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8 Debtors and prepayments

2020 2019
USD$ UsD$
Amounts due within one year
Trade debtors 36,357 113,844
Accrued income 195,877 263,942
Amounts owed by related parties 3,792,713 1,749,603
Prepayments 6,590 6,590

3,995,180 2,020,135

The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of
repayment and are repayable on demand.

9 Creditors

2020 2019
USD$ UsD$
Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed to related parties 2,000 -
At 31 December 2,000 -

The amounts due to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of
repayment and are repayable on demand.
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10 Financial instruments

The company has the following financial instruments:

2020 2020 2019 2019
UsD$ USD$ UsD$ UsD$
Financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost
Trade debtors 232,234 377,786
Other receivables 3,792,713 1,749,603
Cash and cash equivalents 385,018 442,373
4,409,965 2,569,762
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Amounts owed to related parties (2,000) -
(2,000) -
11  Share capital
2020 2019
UsD$ UsD$
Authorised
1,000,000 common shares of USD$1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid
750,000 common shares of USD$1 each 750,000 750,000

The Company has one class of share capital which carries no right to fixed income.
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12

Notes to the statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

2020 2019
UsD$ UsD$
Profit for the financial year 1,840,204 1,701,305
Adjustments for:
Interest expense 2,083 7,955
Operating profit 1,842,287 1,709,260
Working capital movements:
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors and prepayments (1,743,800) 642,044
Increase /(Decrease) in payables 2,000 (2,009,880)
Foreign exchange movement (155,759) -
Cash flow from operating activities (55,272) 341,424
Analysis of change in net funds
Cash at bank and in hand
At Cash flows Exchange As at
2020/1/1 2020 movements 2020/12/31
Cash at bank 442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
Total 442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
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13

14

15

Related party transactions

Other than note 5, transactions with other wholly owned subsidiaries related by common
control are not disclosed as the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section
33.1A of FRS 102.

Controlling parties

Following the restructure of the group, the Company"s immediate parent undertaking is 1Q EQ
Group Holdco (Jersey) Limited (formerly known as Moore Group Limited), a company

incorporated in Jersey.

As at 31 December 2020, the ultimate holding company into which the results are consolidated
is Saphilux Sarl (a Luxembourg entity).

Events after the end of the reporting period

On 29 March 2021 the board resolved to approve the payment of a final dividend for the year
ending 31 December 2020 of USD$2,500,000.
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Independent Auditor®s Report

The Trustee

Precious Trust - Vietnam Infrastructure Fund

(A series trust of an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed and a
Supplemental Trust Deed under laws of the Cayman Islands)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Precious Trust - Vietnam Infrastructure Fund (the" Series
Trust” ) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2021, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then

ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at 30 April 2021 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor”s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Other information consists of the management and administration information. Management is responsible
for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and the Trustee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Series Trust"s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

178/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
27 August 2021
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Independent auditor®s report to the members of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the' company®):
e give a true and fair view of the state of the company"s affairs as at 31 December
2020 and of its profit for the year then ended; and
e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “ The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lIreland; and
e have been prepared in accordance Bermudian Companies Act 1981.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
e the statement of comprehensive income;
e the balance sheet;
e the statement of changes in equity;
e the cash flow statement; and
e the related notes 1 to 14.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102
“ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial
Reporting Council®s (the’ FRC"s") Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors™ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the company®s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Directors report, other than
the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon. The directors are responsible for
the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors®™ responsibilities statement, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

184/186



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor®s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company®s industry and its control environment, and reviewed
the company®s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and
compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates
in, and identified the key laws and regulations that:
e had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. These included Bermudian Companies Act 1981; and
e do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which
may be fundamental to the company®s ability to operate or to avoid a material
penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that
may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the
financial statements.
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As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the
following areas, and our specific procedures performed to address them are described below:
e The valuation of accrued income requires significant management judgement and

therefore there is potential for management bias in revenue recognition. In
response, our testing undertaken, on a sample basis, compared management®s estimate
of recoverable values to amounts billed and recovered post year-end, challenged
management on recoverable values by assessing historic billing and recovery rates
based on our understanding of the specific customer circumstances.

In common with all audits under 1SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific
procedures to respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud
through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries
and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates
are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the
following:

e reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to
assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as
having a direct effect on the financial statements;

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships
that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

e enquiring of management and legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

e reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company®s members, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermudian Companies Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company®s directors those matters we are required to (or have expressly agreed
in this letter to) state to them in an independent auditor®s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company®s members, as a body, for our audit work,
for our reports, or for the opinions we have formed.

Deloitte LLP
St Peter Port
21 June 2021
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